

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc

Annual Report & Financial Statements

2003/04 Season

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT

The 34th Annual General Meeting of the

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc

will be held in the Clubrooms, Anderson Park Pavilion,

on Monday, 9 August, 2004

commencing at 7:30 PM

BUSINESS

- 1. Apologies
- 2. Minutes of the 33rd Annual General Meeting, held on 25th August, 2003
- 3. Adoption of the Annual Report
- 4. Adoption of the Profit & Loss and Balance Sheet
- 5. Election of Officers:
 - o Patron
 - President
 - Senior Vice President
 - Life Members
 - Vice Presidents
 - Club Officers:
 - Honorary Treasurer
 - Honorary Secretary
 - Club Captain
 - Management Committee:
 - 8 elected persons of whom at least 1 shall be a female
 - Delegates to Cricket Wellington Annual General Meeting:
 - 5 required
 - Honorary Auditor
- 6. Club Subscriptions for 2004/05 season
- 7. Notices of Motion
- 8. General Business

OFFICERS 2003/04 SEASON

Patron:

The Most Honourable Reverend Sir Paul Reeves GCMC, GCVO, QSO

Life Members:

D R Alexander, D R Davis, Miss B Fuller, Mrs A Garrett, K R MacDonald, L D Macer, T G McMahon, J S Perkins, R C Pope, E J Stewart, R Swan, I N Taylor, G L Whyte MBE

President:

G R Carruthers

Immediate Past President:

G E Coppersmith

Past Presidents:

D R Davis, Mrs A Garrett, J A L Gibson QC, J G Revell, C J Taylor, I N Taylor, B Waddle

Senior Vice President:

Brett Windley

Vice Presidents:

D B Alabaster, W A Arcus, R T Barber, K W Burke, D Deva, M E Garrett, D T Grainger, G Hopping, D L Hunt, R D Kinsella, A R MacGibbon, D Macer, A D McBeth, C C Monigatti, R Moses, B O'Brien, B Patel, G R Phillips, G M Russell, P W Steele, B R Taylor, G Thomas, J B Tucker, R H Vance, P R Wilson, A D Wilkinson, B E Windley, A C Yule

Honorary Treasurer: Honorary Secretary: Club Captain: W Sadler P Palmer D Deva

Management Committee:

B S P Marra (Chairman), I Wright (Wellington College), N Royfee (Junior Club), W Bedford, P. Bedford, A Hill, M McLean, B Steele, B Watson

Delegates to Cricket Wellington Inc:

Graeme Carruthers, W Bedford, Dilip Deva, P Palmer, N Royfee

Junior Club Liaison:

N Royfee

Selectors:

Bar Manager: Gear Custodians: Results Steward:
D Deva D Deva/R Swan A C Yule

MINUTES OF 33rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE WELLINGTON COLLEGIANS CRICKET CLUB HELD 25 AUGUST 2003 AT THE CLUB ROOMS, ANDERSON PARK

Meeting commenced at 7.30pm, chaired by Graeme Carruthers

Apologies

Larry Macer, Al Hill, Will Sadler, Scott McHardy, Nishant Goyat, Chris Taylor, Darrin Wilkinson, Alistair McBeth

Minutes of the 32nd AGM

The minutes of the 32nd AGM were accepted as a true and correct record G Coppersmith/W Bedford

Adoption of the Annual Report

Paddy Marra spoke to the Annual Report. He thanked Peter Palmer for putting together the annual report and noted the following points.

- The men's first eleven had done very well given the youth and lack of experience in this side. They had begun well but had faded towards the end of the season as their lack of experience began to show. The team appeared to be one quality bowler short at crucial times which meant that they had not been able to exploit favourable situations.
- The Women's senior team had come second in their first year back in the grade. This was a commendable effort.
- He congratulated the Living Legends for winning their grade in their first season in 2 day cricket. All the one day teams had achieved mid table results.
- For the coming season, Scott McHardy had agreed to accept the captaincy of the men's first eleven, the club was trying to organise an additional bowler and was working to get Nishant Goyat, a very promising Indian batsman, a work permit so he could stay in New Zealand and play for the Club.
- The Club's finances were in a reasonably healthy state. It had proved rather
 difficult to obtain support from the various charitable trusts. Initial substantial
 applications had been rejected and the Club had been forced to make a series of
 applications for small grants from various sources. However, overall, this had
 been successful with grants ultimately totally around \$20,000. Paddy expressed
 thanks to Lion Foundation and NZ Community Trust for their support.
- The Bull and Bear had agreed to be the Club's principal sponsor and this had proved to be a successful arrangement. He congratulated Brian Steele for his work in negotiating this deal.
- The Club's social committee had been a tremendous success. A great after match atmosphere had been created, bar takings were up while behaviour had been exemplary. He congratulated Mal McLean and Phillipa Bedford in particular for their efforts.

Finally, Paddy expressed the Club's condolences to John Revel and Bob Forsythe's families at the passing away of these two club stalwarts.

Graeme Carruthers spoke to the Annual Report. He congratulated the Social Committee for their efforts in creating a great social atmosphere, looked forward to

improved performances on the field in the coming season, and noted the increasing difficulty with raising funds.

Finally, it was noted that some amendments were required to the Honours Board section of the Annual Report. These were the inclusion of Fiona Fraser and James Franklin as NZ representatives in 2002 and the following achievements for the season:

James Franklin	Senior Men	555 runs
Nishant Goyat	Senior Men/Reserves	634 runs
James Hill	Senior Men	567 runs
R B Dyer	3A	599 runs
W. Sadler	3A	528 runs

The Annual Report was duly adopted.

Marra/Carruthers

Financial Reports

Paddy Marra noted the improvement in the bar takings. He commented that Club Fees had been set at modest levels and that most players and teams had paid. However, he expressed disappointment that a few senior players had not paid and some lower grade teams had not paid their full share.

Graeme Carruthers commented on the contribution of the Junior Club and congratulated the Junior Club for their excellent administration and financial management.

The Financial Reports and Balance Sheet were duly adopted.

Carruthers/Palmer

Election of Officers

The following officers were duly elected.

Patron Sir Paul Reeves

President Graeme Carruthers (2nd year of 2 year term)

Senior Vice President
Secretary
Peter Palmer
Treasurer
Club Captain
Will Sadler
Dilip Deva

Management Committee Wainui Bedford, Phillipa Bedford, Brian Steele,

Michael McLean, Paddy Marra, Brent Watson,

Al Hill

Delegates to Cricket Wgton

AGM Graeme Carruthers, Wainui Bedford, Dilip Deva

Peter Palmer, Nigel Royfee

Hon Auditor Graeme Sugden

Club Subscriptions

Paddy Marra outlined the context in which this year's subscriptions would need to be set. This included increasing difficulty obtaining support from Pub Charities. Accordingly, the outgoing committee had decided that fees should be set at the beginning of the year so everybody knew what they were. He recommended that the fee structure should be determined by the incoming committee, but that the sub would be around \$140 - \$150 with the Senior players paying a bit more to cover coaching costs.

It was moved that "the incoming committee set subs for the coming season at around \$140-\$150 per player, with subs to be paid before Christmas"

Carried Marra/McLean

General Business

It was noted that Cricket Wellington had now agreed that the maximum payments clubs could make to players was in total \$10,000 per club per season. This would not affect Collegians.

It was also noted that defaulting teams would be fined plus lose competition points.

Sally Morrison thanked the Club for its support of Women's cricket. She commented that women club members were pleased with the support they had been given and that there was a possibility of a Senior Women's reserve team playing this year. She noted that some issues may arise around fees for young players eg school girls but that these could be resolved by the incoming committee.

The meeting closed around 9pm

PRESIDENT'S REPORT

Graeme Carruthers

It's been a privilege to have served as President for the last two years. Although we haven't been able to regain Pearce Cup status, the club has made further progress in consolidating its position in various respects, and the performance of all teams this last season has been encouraging.

The men's Senior team showed the benefit of a further year's experience and produced a more consistent performance overall. While it was frustrating not to win the Hazlett Trophy, there are signs of progress and with a little more consistency in batting that is certainly achievable and might not be far off. The Senior Womens Team were victorious, having gained an early advantage with excellent performances and never being headed. An enthusiastic 2nd women's team was also fielded and both teams have contributed substantially to the club. The men's 2nd team were worthy winners of Senior 3 and, although some gaps due to departures overseas need to be filled, their promotion should strengthen the wider senior squad and hopefully attract players to the club who aim to play senior level cricket. The other men's teams seemed more stable this season and both 2A and 3A performed solidly in their grades.

At the time of writing this, it is a thrill to watch James Franklin playing tests and ODIs in England, and representing the club with distinction. As one completely unbiased radio commentator said, James represents a great club with whom he has been associated since he was knee high to some of us. Also, several of the women's team represented Wellington and Amanda Cooper played for NZ A, surely a step along the way to higher honours. Congratulations to them, and to all those who gained rep honours.

The club's committee continues to be committed and enthusiastic in its efforts. The sound financial position reflects the hard work that goes in year in year out and which does not often gain reward or recognition. Our junior club remains very well run and has for some years been one of the largest clubs in Wellington. It is to be hoped that, with assistance from Wellington Cricket and the colleges, we can keep in touch with the progress of those players graduating from our junior ranks. They have had an excellent start to their careers.

Thanks to all those who made my term as President an easy and enjoyable one. I hope to continue to support the club on Saturdays when and where possible. The club has a strong future to look forward to and I'm pleased to be able to hand over the Presidency to Brett Windley for the 2004-05 year.

CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

Paddy Marra

The 2003/04 season can be described as very good, but without meeting the major objective for the year, winning the Hazlett Trophy.

We must congratulate the Senior Women's team for winning the Women's Championship and the Senior Reserve team for winning the Senior 3 Championship and gaining promotion to Senior 2.

However, despite D Scott (Monty) McHardy scoring over 600 runs, the most in Senior cricket, Nishant Goyat scoring over 500 runs and being the second highest run scorer, and with Sam Kirk taking over 50 wickets to be the highest wicket taker in Senior Cricket, we again came second in the Hazlett Trophy by the margin of less than the two day win we could have had against Hutt Districts (who won the Hazlett Trophy) after out playing them for a day and half only to falter in our second innings run chase.

While none of the other teams won their Championships, the 4AB's threatened at the New Year break but then suffered their normal defaults as 'more important' matters took over.

All in all, it was a solid season with many memorable performances.

We congratulate Jimmy Franklin on his selection for the Wellington Firebirds and New Zealand A team, and in his good positioning and making the most of his opportunity in winning his place back into the Black Caps and then consolidating it with a great starting 5 wicket performance in the 1 day tri-series against England.

Apart from the achievements already mentioned above, we must also congratulate Amanda Cooper in winning the Marjorie Sweetman Trophy (Most Wickets in Senior Women's) with 26 wickets and Cricket Wellington's Women's Club Cricketer of the Year. In addition Erin McDonald won the Cricket Wellington Norwood Award (Representative Players) for Outstanding Bowler, which added to Monty and Sam's trophies and the Championship awards at the Cricket Wellington awards night.

We also congratulate Amanda Cooper, Erin McDonald, Faele O'Connor, Amy Burgess, Sophie Jackson, and Melissa Burgess as members of the Wellington Blaze squad and Sally Morrison as the Manager. In addition Sacha Butler played for Wairarapa and Hannah Bedford for the Wellington U16 Tour to South Africa and for her selection in the Wellington U20 2004 Tour to Australia. And to complete a Collegians and family dominance, Wainui Bedford was the Manager of the Wellington U16 girls, Wellington U20 Women's and Wellington Women's 2ndXI.

Our Junior Club still remains one of the strongest in Wellington both by numbers, quality of administration and through members representing Wellington at various levels and tournaments.

The Senior Club remains in good heart fielding 4 two day and 3 one day men's teams, as well as 2 women's team.

The Club had an excellent year financially, with a surplus of \$11,817 and with both the Senior and Junior Clubs recording surpluses of \$9,318 and \$2,499 respectively.

Having said that the Club is in a good position financially, all New Zealand sports clubs are concerned about the Charities Bill that is currently before Parliament. This Bill requires all recipients of money from the gaming charities (who run the gaming machines in Pubs) to be registered charities. The problem is that the Inland Revenue has previously ruled that Sports Clubs are not charities and while the Bill establishes a new position of a Charities Commissioner, independent of the Inland Revenue, it is uncertain if the new Commissioner will allow sports clubs to become registered charities and if so there will be an extra cost in becoming a registered charity and meeting the compliance requirements. If sports clubs are allowed to become registered charities then we will need to once again look at how sports clubs are funded after at least two other changes in the pub charity laws and regulations in the past three seasons.

It is unclear what the Labour Government's objectives are, but it is clear that sport will have a tougher time getting funding even if they are allowed to become registered charities. Sport is important in keeping young people healthy and active and 'out of trouble'. It has traditionally been a backbone to New Zealand society, where lifelong friendships are built.

During the past season the Club received \$31,200 in Pub Charity grants, primarily from the New Zealand Community Trust, for which we are very appreciative and thank the New Zealand Community Trust for their sponsorship and grants. If the Bill is passed unchanged, then we will have to once again totally rethink how we fund the Club.

I would also like to thank the Bull & Bear Tavern for their assistance and sponsorship during the year. However, they have indicated that they will not be continuing the arrangement in the coming year and there were will have another gap in our funding program that has to be filled by the incoming committee.

I would like to thank the Committee for their work during the past year, particularly Dilip Deva for his work as Club Captain and for looking after the Clubrooms and the Bar. I would also like to make a special thank you to retiring members of the Committee, especially Peter Palmer, who is retiring as Secretary, and Brian Steele, who put in a lot of work during his term on strategic planning and sponsorship funding.

I would also like to thank Graeme Carruthers for his input and advice over his two year term as President as his term comes to an end.

CLUB CAPTAIN'S REPORT

Dilip Deva

Firstly, I take this opportunity to say Congratulations to the Senior Women and Senior Three teams for being grade winners. I guess all the hard work put in during the preseason in those cold and wet winter months certainly paid off.

Pre-season warm up matches for the Senior Men's team to the Wairarapa and Palmerston North were called off due to rain and poor weather, but the team did travel down south to Blenheim which Collegians won comfortably.

It was a poor summer with many matches affected by rain; let's hope we get a better summer for the up coming season. There were solid performances from all the grades with two teams coming first, two teams coming second and one team third which represents a fairly good result.

Highlights

Highlights for me were:

- Dan and his Senior Three Team winning their senior three grade
- Amanda and Senior Women winning their championship
- Scott McHardy for the most runs in the Hazlett Trophy
- Sam Kerr for the most wickets; and
- Amanda Cooper for most runs and wickets in the Senior Women's Grade.

Representative honours: James Franklin for Firebirds and New Zealand A. Also playing in Lancashire and was called up to join the New Zealand Touring party and played in the Third Test. James Hill for Wellington A side Tournament. Also included in the squad of 15 was Nishant Goyat. Hannah Bedford selected to play for Wellington secondary schools, to tour Australia. Amanda Cooper New Zealand A, Erin Macdonald and Sally Morrison (Manager) - Wellington Blaze, Faele O'Conner, Wellington 2X11, Hannah Bedford Wellington Secondary school and U19.

As a Club Captain I enjoyed my position in the club and the learning as I went. I look forward to the up coming season.

JUNIOR CLUB REPORT 2003/04

Nigel Royfee

SUMMARY

The 2003/04 season was a particularly successful one for the Junior Club, in terms of player numbers, funding, and the services and support we were able to offer all our Primary School players from Nursery grade right through to Premier level.

As a Committee we actively seek to optimise player and parent enjoyment in their involvement with both cricket and Collegians, by maintaining a level of support unrivalled by any other junior club.

We were pleased to see year on year player numbers increase slightly in 2003/04, and with 406 players and 34 teams Collegians retained its status as the largest junior cricket club in Wellington.

Highlights of the 2003/04 season included a well received and popular pre-season Spring training program open to all hard ball cricketers, the recruitment and use of professional coaches, more teams than ever before involved in January tournaments, enhancements to the Junior Cricket Club website, and a successful program of events including soft ball training clinics, the Year 8 Leavers function, and the end of season prize-giving.

FINANCIALS

One of the major issues facing the Junior Club in the 2003/04 season was the demise of the Hillary Commission whose grants had subsidised various Junior Club costs, including gear and professional coaching, over a number of seasons. The support of the Hillary Commission had been critical to the financial well being of the Club, and replacement funding had to be found.

As it turned out the 2003/04 season was one of the most successful ever in securing funding. A number of successful applications were made to New Zealand Community Trust that enabled us to undertake a major gear replacement program, purchase balls, meet Cricket Wellington affiliation fees, and subsidise the cost of employing professional coaches. In addition funding was also received from Cricket Wellington for coaching activities through the good graces of the Senior Club. In total grants came to \$17,318 compared to \$12,948 in 2002/03.

The grants meant that the Junior Club was able to report a small operating surplus of \$2,499 for the 2003/04 season. This was just \$400 short of the original budget, which was a very good result.

In 2004/05 the Junior Club will again seek to secure community trust funding. In addition a concerted campaign to increase enrolments and subscription revenue is also planned.

JUNIOR COMMITTEE

The Junior Club is blessed with a very active and dedicated Committee. In 2004/05 our challenge will be to recruit more parents on to the Committee to share the workload. We also plan to continue with the services of a paid Administrator. Jacqui Forsythe who had performed that role for two years resigned at the end of the season and we are in the process of appointing a replacement.

The composition of the Committee has remained reasonably stable. Jim Heffernan joined the Committee in 2003/04 as Tournament Coordinator and, as well as Jacqui, we also received resignations at season end from Anna O'Meeghan and Jim Williams. Alistair Hamilton will replace Jim Williams as the St Marks' representative, and Simon Cooper and Barry Davey have also joined the Committee. Thanks go to Jacqui, Anna, and Jim for all their efforts on behalf of the Junior Club.

At the beginning of the 2003/04 season the Committee was made up of the following individuals:

Convenor Nigel Royfee Secretary/Administrator Jacqui Forsythe Treasurer Andy Fullbrook Senior Club Chairman Paddy Marra Gear Manager Dilip Deva St Mark's School Coordinator Jim Williams Coaching Manager Tony Dawbin Hard Ball Coordinator Grea Forsythe **Tournament Coordinator** Jim Heffernan Senior Grade Coordinator Peter Newell Junior Grade Coordinator Graeme Sugden Website Coordinator Charles Thompson First Aid Coordinator Anna O'Meeghan Communications Coordinator Emma Lawler

MEMBERSHIP/TEAM STATISTICS

Player numbers in 2003/04 increased to 406 from 392 in 2002/03, reversing a trend over the previous three seasons. However, a very large group of Year 8s, 52 in total, left us at Christmas, so it is vitally important that we are successful in recruiting new players in 2004/05, particularly at the Milo Have a Go (Nursery) and U7 levels.

In the 2003/04 season Wellington Junior Cricket moved to an age grade structure to bring it into line with other parts of the country. The grades were as follows (where ages are mentioned, they were as at September 1, 2003):

- MILO Have A Go: children up to the age of 6.
- Under 7 (MILO Kiwi)
- Under 8
- Under 9
- Under 10 (first hardball grade)
- Under 11
- Under 12
- Colts: children over 12, under 14 (pre-Christmas grade in which teams largely comprise players who will be playing in Premier grade in the New Year).
- Premier: children over 12, under 14 (the best players in the Club, generally but not exclusively Year 8 children).
- Under 14
- Girls Softball: girls under 10.
- Girls Hardball: girls over 10.

Grade/Competition	Teams 03/04	Players 03/04	Grade/Competition	Teams 02/03	Players 02/03
Nursery (Milo	1	39	Nursery	2	44
Have A Go)					
Under 7	7	50	Kiwi	6	52
Under 8	5	58	Midget	3	33
Under 9	2	26	Apprentice	5	60
Under 10	5	64	Junior	3	38
Under 11	4	50	Intermediate	3	40
Under 12	3	35			
Girls Soft Ball	0	0	Girls Apprentice	1	8
Girls Hard Ball	1	13	Girls Super 8	1	10
U14/Colts/Premier	6	71	Senior/Colts/Premier	9	107
TOTALS	34	406		33	392

Grade/Competition	Tms	Plys	Tms	Plys	Tms	Plys	Tms	Plys	Plys
	01/02	01/02	00/01	00/01	99/00	99/00	98/99	98/99	97/98
Nursery	2	29	2	29	5	54	N/A	23	23
Kiwi/Kiwi 1	3	37	5	48	7	70	6	60	Soft
Midget/Kiwi 2	8	75	4	36	8	72	10	98	Ball
Apprentice/ Jnr B	6	72	8	85	9	108	6	77	237
Junior/Jnr A	4	56	9	102	5	60	5	66	Hard
Intermediate	9	106	4	49	5	60	7	77	Ball
Snr/Colts/Premier	4	51	8	95	8	96	6	71	234
TOTALS	36	426	40	444	47	520	40	472	493

RELATIVE SIZE OF WELLINGTON/NORTH CITY JUNIOR CLUBS 2003/04

Club	Boys	Girls	Total Players
Collegians	365	41	406
Onslow	338	30	368
Easts	301	40	341
Karori	224	80	304
Tawa	184	30	214
Johnsonville	181	30	211
Mana	148	16	164
Whitby	95	12	107
Brooklyn	45	0	45
Scots	25	0	25

SATURDAY COMPETITION GAMES

The emphasis for players in Primary School cricket has always been on participation, having fun, and improving skills. The main focus for our teams in the 2003/04 season was on involvement in the Wellington Club competition.

Traditionally there has been no streaming of players except for Colts (Year 7) and Premier (Year 8) teams. In early 2004 however Cricket Wellington undertook a review of the Wellington representative programme, which also covered the quality and structure of junior cricket. As a result of the review Cricket Wellington recommended that Premier sections be established in the Under 11, Under 12, Under 13, and Under 14 junior club cricket grades. The recommendation was founded on an assumption that in mixed sides 'better' cricketers were consigned to

playing an unsatisfactory level of club cricket, thereby compromising Wellington representative cricket. The Collegians Junior Committee, after consulting with coaches, challenged that assumption and made a submission opposing streaming at the Under 11 and Under 12 grades.

Collegians' submission argued that if we focus on maintaining a high level of enjoyment and engagement, and on improving skill levels across all junior players, supplemented by extra winter coaching along with summer tournaments (and coaching) for 'better' players, then we will end up with a stronger player base across the junior grades which will flow into the older age levels.

Instead of streaming we proposed an Under 11 and Under 12 tournament involving 'Premier' club sides to replace the Zone tournaments. We felt this would accomplish the streamed competition proposed in the Cricket Wellington review and the tournament could also act as the vehicle to select Cricket Wellington winter training squads. The Wellington/North City Junior Club Convenors Committee has subsequently embraced this suggestion.

As last year's annual report emphasised, as a Junior Club we look to provide an environment which nurtures a broad base of young players, from high achievers to those whose attitudes are more social. Our mixed teams therefore include players at various levels of skill development and are pitched to attain a balance between the numbers of wins and losses.

Grade	Wins 2003-04	Wins 2002-03	Wins 2001- 02	Wins 2000-01
Kiwi/U7	30%	44%	56%	45%
Midget/U8	31%	33%	22%	59%
Apprentice/U9	35%	43%	38%	41%
Junior/U10	39%	52%	33%	54%
Intermed/U11	57%	47%	55%	66%
Snr/U12 & U14	55%	56%	30%	22%
Colts/Premier	72%	38%	36%	43%

Grade	Wins 1999-00	Wins 1998-99
Kiwi 1	45%	32%
Kiwi 2	47%	37%
Junior B	57%	25%
Junior A	30%	38%
Intermediate	43%	53%
Senior	52%	40%
Colts/Premier	53%	33%

In 2003/04 the Club was again well represented in the Wellington Zone tournaments where Collegians and Karori combine to form Wellington Western Zone sides. We participated in three age group competitions playing three games each. A number of Collegians players were selected for either Wellington squads or Wellington development squads.

TOURNAMENTS

For the first time Collegians sent representative teams not only to the Hawkes Bay tournament, run by the Hawkes Bay Cricket Association, but also to a Wanganui tournament held at Wanganui Collegiate and organised by the Wanganui Junior Cricket Board. Five sides, with players selected on ability, participated in the Hawkes Bay tournament, including an Under 10 side for the first time, and two sides at the Under 13 level. Three 'development' squads were selected for Wanganui. The concept behind the 'development' squads was to offer players who might not otherwise be selected for a 'firsts' side the opportunity to experience tournament play.

Whilst the Wanganui tournament was a tougher competition than we had anticipated and none of our sides won a game, the players definitely benefited from the experience, with the teams showing real improvements in performance.

At Hastings all the Collegians teams performed strongly with the Under 10 side winning three out of its four matches, the Under 11s five out of six, the Under 12s six out of six, and the two Under 13 sides in a rain shortened tournament, one out of three and two out of three respectively.

Thank you to all the parents involved in the coaching and management of the teams.

COACHING

Tony Dawbin continued on in 2003/04 in the role of Coaching Manager. This is a key position coordinating the various coaching activities of the club.

As always, we rely on parent coaches and managers to provide coaching and administration at the team level. We are indebted to them for their sustained commitment and enthusiasm.

In 2003/04 we recruited Jamie Tong and Greg Haines, both Collegians senior players, to act as professional coaches for all the Collegians teams including Nursery grade. This proved to be a great success, but unfortunately we lost both Jamie and Greg before the second half of the season and had to revert to using casual coaches after Christmas. This proved to be less successful and we hope to again appoint a professional coach or coaches for the 2004/05 season.

In 2002/03, instead of a Winter training program, we introduced pre-season Spring training for 'elite' players being considered for inclusion in the squads to go to the Hawkes Bay tournament. In 2003/04 we continued with the Spring training format but opened it up for the first time to all hard ball players in the Club. This proved to be a great success with 120 players involved. The program ran on Saturdays & Sundays over an 8 week period during September and October. The program was developed for the Club by the coaching team at the Cricket Academy, and sessions were held at both the Westpac Stadium and the Basin Reserve. In 2003/04 we plan to continue with the 'open' format for Spring training with all the sessions being held at Westpac Stadium and run by Cricket Academy coaches.

The 'open' approach to pre-season training is consistent with the Club's policy of nurturing as broad a base as possible of the Club's young players.

As well as hard ball training, two coaching clinics for softball players were held at Anderson Park. The first, which was combined with the pre-season coaches briefing and gear uplift, was particularly well attended.

PLAYER RECOGNITION

Prior to Christmas we farewelled our Year 8 players at the Year 8 Leavers function held at Anderson Park. Greg Forsythe arranged for Bruce Edgar to speak, and the Graeme Hopping Cup, awarded to a Year 8 player who has displayed special qualities such as leadership and sportsmanship during the season, went to Fraser MacLachlan.

For the second consecutive year the end of season prize-giving functions were all held at the clubrooms on the same day, Sunday April 4th, with the various grades being divided into three sessions. The event included a BBQ, ticket sales for the raffle of a bat autographed by the Black Caps, and a cricket ball throw competition run by Tony Dawbin. The formal prize giving consisted of each player being presented with a certificate as a member of his or her team. Players of the season for each team were presented with trophies.

The new format again proved a more efficient way of concluding the season from an organisational point of view, and the functions were well received and well attended by players and parents.

WEBSITE

Collegians has unquestionably the best junior cricket club website in Wellington. Thank you to Charles Thompson who does an outstanding job administering the site.

In 2003/04 the Honours Board continued to be a popular feature of the site along with the match reports. Charles also introduced an excellent new feature, which provides maps to all the cricket grounds courtesy of Wises Maps.

ACKNOWLEGEMENTS

Thank you to all the members of the Junior Club Committee for their commitment and hard work throughout the year. Thank you also to the parents who willingly undertake coaching, management, and scoring duties for the teams. We also farewell our Administrator, Jacqui Forsythe, who did such a sterling job for two seasons.

Finally, thank you to the Senior Club, whose Chairman, Paddy Marra, and other Committee members happily provide support and encouragement for the activities of the Junior Club.

Nigel Royfee Junior Convenor 16 July 2004

WOMENS CRICKET

Wainui Bedford

The 2003/2004 season has proven to be an exciting one for Collegians again this year with 2 teams competing 1 in the Senior Women's competition and 1 in the Super 8's. Collegians Senior Women won the Wellington Club competition this year which has come from a lot of hard work, dedication and commitment from the players. Also with the on going coaching support from Penny Kinsella which aided the players in their success this year, a competition win is always the best reward for any coach—well done Penny. The Super 8's had a better season and lifted their profile this year with closer games and some players achieved personal bests with either their bowling or batting figures. After the first round the Super 8 section was split into 2, with teams more evenly matched playing against each other which proved very beneficial and our girls finishing 5th in their division. Well done everyone.

As we do every year we try to lift the profile of women's cricket and attract more players to the club. This year we managed to get a few new players which is always good but never enough. Usually as we head towards the end of the season players drop off through injury or moving on to university and sometimes it can be a bit of a mission to make up the numbers on Saturdays. So if you know of anyone keen to play please give us a call.

Once again this season we have had great support from the Collegians Club and Committee who have recognised the Women's teams efforts this year, thank you very much. Finally to our loyal supporters, friends husbands and partners thank you very much for your support, help coaching and understanding we couldn't have done it without you.

SENIOR WOMEN

Well what a great season for the senior women this year, we finally won the championship!!! Apparently 25 years is a long time waiting in the wings for this to happen lets hope we can maintain this winning team and not have to wait another 25 years for a drink out of the trophy!!!

This season started off on a very positive note with strong recruiting of players we managed to nab Erin MacDonald from CD's clutches to play for us and eventually for Wellington Blaze, Faele O'Connor and Toni Chapman from East's. The return of core players from last year made a very strong base for the team and they played a huge part in our success along with the guidance of Penny Kinsella once again.

Interruptions in weekend play this year was constant, either the weather kept us waiting in club rooms or no play due to the Blaze playing helped us go through the season to finish 1st (Won 9, Lost 2, Drew 2). To mention all worthy events during our season would take to long but mention should be made of the following: - Long sit outs in various club rooms waiting for the rain to stop, trying to stand up in windy conditions at McAlister Park, unable to play decent cricket after a team mates 30th – result first loss for the season, a bus accident in which 7 of our players were injured, the return of Maria Kapralos (Hammer), Emma Marriott and Penny putting on her whites for one last time.

Representative Honours in the team this year went to :- Amanda Cooper NZ A, Amanda Cooper, Erin MacDonald & Sally Morrison (manager) Wellington Blaze, Faele O'Connor Wellington 2XII, Hannah Bedford Wgtn Secondary Schools & Wellington U19 (touring Australia later this year). Recipients of Wellington Club trophies this year were: - Amanda Cooper – Marjorie Sweetman Trophy (Most Wickets in Senior Women's – 26), also Amanda was named Women's Club Cricketer of the Year. The Norwood Awards (for rep players) saw Erin McDonald win Women's Outstanding Bowler, and of course the TEAM winning Club Champions Title for the Women's grade, a great effort by everyone.

Well to sum the season up I can honestly say it was a very successful one, which I hope we can grow into another for next year. To all the players and Penny I hope we can see the return of you all for another exciting year of cricket. Take care.

SUPER 8s Kerryn Young

The Super 8's team this year came into the competition with 100% more experience and class than last year. Unfortunately due to some teams pulling out of the competition and a juggle round of the grounds we ended up in the A grade and quickly found ourselves looking like ducks out of water.

Even with our one years experience with the bat and ball, it was clear we still weren't ready for the A grade. After a long grading round, we were finally transferred to the B grade where experience actually counted against some teams. By the end of the season, we had won 5 games. We would have been real contenders for top spot if we had been in the B grade right from the start.

Once again many of our experienced opponents were impressed by the improvement our team showed, especially when they thought back to the beginning of the previous season when there were more wides than legit balls and an attempted catch meant running as quickly as possible in the opposite direction.

One thing I am really proud of this year is the quality of our catching and fielding. We took just about all of the regulation catches and even some exceptional ones. I saw the top teams drop much easier ones than us. Also as captain it was good to see the girls putting their body on the line in the field.

Performance wise we had three times the number of 50's as last year. Congrats to Ang for her maiden 50. Keryn Morgan again was relentless with her opening bowling stopping most openers in their tracks. Keryn Morgan picked up the award for highest number of wickets, with Kerryn Young again taking out the top batting award. These people were followed up by a good backup performance by everyone else. The new girls to the team must get a mention as they quickly picked up their skills to fit right in and outshine some of the old hands at times.

As with last year congratulations must go to all of the team who clearly improved out of sight over the season. I look forward to our new recruits for next year with a number of the girls taking off on their OE's.

COLLEGIANS SENIOR MEN'S TEAM REPORT

Scott McHardy

Looking back on the 2003/04 season it is difficult not to reflect on what might have been. There are no prizes for second-best and unfortunately that is where we have ended up for the third time in five years.

Whilst the team trophy cabinet remained bare for another season, individual performances during the season give me some heart for the 2004/05 season. Both Sam Kirk and I picked up the Cricket Wellington awards for most wickets and runs in senior cricket, Sam with 51 wickets @ 12.8 and myself with 614 runs @ 43.9.

Nishant Goyat with 2 centuries and 549 runs and maiden tons from Justin Lampard (154) and Nick Whittington (111) suggest that there is plenty of batting depth within the ranks. However, too often during the season, batsmen succumbed to a series of brain explosions that meant in a number of crucial matches we sold ourselves short, e.g., Hutt Districts 2-dayer and Wainui 1-dayer.

On the bowling front, there was clear daylight between Sam and the next highest wicket taker, Garrick Sutherland with 20 wickets @ 19. That said, having missed the first 5 weeks of the season with a nagging back injury, Garrick's return of 20 senior wickets and a 7-for in the reserves was a decent return. Dan Gyles (19 wickets @ 21.7) and Martin Seddon (17 wickets @ 19.8) both enjoyed extended spells in the senior ranks and performed well.

In terms of our representative players, James Franklin continued his development as a first-class cricketer and as we have seen in recent weeks, has taken his chances for the Black Caps in England. James Hill, despite a frustrating season dogged by a back injury picked up at the Academy, was selected for the Wellington A team for the national tournament. More recently Nishant has been included in the Wellington Development side for its proposed pre-season tour to Australia.

The challenge remains for the senior team to get out of the Hazlett Trophy for 2004/05 and take what many club members believe is Collegian's rightful place amongst the elite senior Wellington club cricket sides.

This task will not be made any easier by the unavailability of Sam Kirk who has taken a job in Christchurch. On behalf of the senior side I would like to thank Sammy for all his efforts and wish him all the best for the future.

Finally, pre-season training is scheduled to start at the Stadium from Wednesday 1 September from 8.30pm.

Looking forward to summer (as always)

SENIOR RESERVES SEASON REPORT 2003/04

Dan Kershaw

The team achieved its major goal this season, winning the Senior Three Championship, securing promotion to the Senior Two grade. It was a tense finish to the season, needing to beat Eastbourne at Anderson Park in the final match to win the competition. Batting first we made 261 all out and seemed to be cruising to victory having Eastbourne on the ropes at 125 for 7 but a hard hit partnership of 75 for the 9th wicket meant a tight finish was on the cards. Some tight fielding and great bowling put the pressure back on Eastbourne who eventually succumbed, falling 25 runs short.

The season's highlights included one day wins against Petone, Karori, University and the last game versus Eastbourne. The team also beat Naenae and University in two day games before Christmas and led the points table right through the competition.

Several new recruits to the club made successful contributions this season, in particular the glove work from our wicket keeper Greg McDonald, the opening bowling from Glenn Eglinton, and solid batting by Anil Dhull. Anil was awarded with the batting trophy this year and he was well supported throughout the season by Heath Smith, Preston Marra and Jamie Tong.

With the ball, Julian Brown was again the main destroyer for the team, the highlight being his 8-25 haul against Petone. Preston Marra, Jamie Tong, Mal McLean and the master Brent (Jerry) Maguire collected wickets consistently.

Special mention must be given to two key supporters - Paddy Marra and Dilip Deva - who provided fantastic support and advice throughout the summer. Thank you both.

With the promotion to the Senior Two competition, the reserves will be competing against teams like Taita, Brooklyn and Wellington College on better wickets and the use of official umpires. This exposure can only enhance the status of Collegians as a club and improve the skill of the team. Well done gentlemen on a fine championship performance - you should all be extremely proud of your efforts.



Photo – Men's Senior Reserve Team in action.

2A GRADE REPORT

Al Hill

The 2A season was one of highs and lows. This was my first as Captain and it was a large learning experience. It bought home respect for Simon Law (the previous Captain) as he had made it look so easy. Along with every side we had to put up with rain delayed or cancelled games and with decks that might have been more suited to a 4 wheel drive off-road meet.

Before Christmas we managed to meet the top three sides in both two-day and one-day games, although only loosing one two-day game to Onslow we had not managed to win any. This put us at the bottom of the grade. Just after Christmas the weather seriously set in and I was starting to worry that we would not get our chance against some of the lesser sides, relegation due to Wellington Summer weather would have been a bit trite.

Catching was our major issue, with the lowlight being 13 dropped catches in one session! As you all know this is death to your chances of taking a victory. So I pulled out an incentive: take five catches, without dropping one, and I would shout a dinner. Well the very next Saturday the lads stepped up and I owed them a dinner! For me this was the turning point of our season. We were playing Easts and had started the second day following on 170 runs behind with nine wickets in hand. We managed to hold on for 70 boring but crucial overs before being all out. We had obtained enough runs to set them 110 to win off 17 overs. They managed 107 for 7, six of these wickets being the catches. Although I put the change in form down to the dinner it may have been the new fine system with 10 dollars a dropped catch that spurned us on.

After Christmas we started to put some good cricket together, winning a two-day game and a couple of one-dayers. A bit of confidence in your side, either as a bowler with your field or as a batsman with your partner at the other end, created a more positive air and the resultant form. These results accrued us enough points to advance to 5th in the standings and safety from relegation by the end of the season.

Batting performances of note were the half centuries by Bish Patel and Dunc Cambray against Easts. An incredible drunken 47 from Hammo: "never in the field of cricket have so many runs gone past the hands of fielders, in the air, taking so much time". I was umpiring during 10 overs of the marathon and the language the bowler produced was browning all the grass half way down the pitch! Al Thomas produced an outstanding half-century innings to see us home to a rare one-day win against Mana; although Riz would have you know it was his boundary that really sealed it.

Our late entrant to the side: Owen Mann, also found form with the bat when few of the others in the side managed. This occurred versus the Sri Lankans on a pitch that should really have been left to the swamp fowl and rooting pigs; if memory serves he managed to eek out 40 or so runs. Unfortunately this was the weekend before the big flood so the likely 2 day loss we were facing had to be cancelled: shame. I managed at last to find some form in the final 2-day game against University with 110 unbeaten runs aggregate from both innings. Last but by no means least was the partnership of Riz and Sir Alan Wightman against Easts Roosters (possibly the foulest side we had to put up with) when we turned the batting order upside down. The ring-in bowlers had demolished their batsmen for 63, but we were following suit with 13 for 3. Then these cricketing troubadours came together for an unbeaten innings to really rub East's noses in their loss – excellent!

On the bowling front we also had some major contributors. As always Jon Duffy put his hand up but I don't think I have seen him bowl as well as he did when he got 6-for when we demolished Tawa. He appeared to get faster and more aggressive with each new over. On questioning him as to the secret of his new prowess he confessed to abstention from alcohol and cigarettes for the last three weeks. We all knew that this incredible form therefore could not last. Despite being back off the wagon Jon managed to all but have his hands on the bowlers cup for the season.

However, one of the other notable performers with the ball, and maybe the Captain's decision to call him a bowler in the final 'reverse order' match, meant that honour was lavished upon Wayne 'Dog' Redshaw. With a fine 5 for bowling effort he managed to pip Jonny to the post by one wicket. He managed 5 wickets in an innings on two occasions if memory serves and was the driving force for the change in fortunes in other games. Darren 'Hoshie' Hoshek was the man when it came to staring down the barrel of a Wellington howler; I feel he was robbed of a really good haul of wickets. His ability with the ball and dedication in the field meant he got an opportunity to play for the seniors; this was further justified when he kept his spot.

Another sterling performer with the ball was Sir Allan Wightman. He can be justifiably miffed with his captain for not giving him more opportunities as when he bowled he invariably took wickets. His most memorable performance was against Tawa where the bounce of the ball just went his way. A catch by Hamo at Mid Off, when it is dubious as to whether he could actually see (hangovers have their drawbacks), and another by Riz in a ricochet off the outstretched shin of Sir Allen (in a despairing attempt to stop a definite four off his own bowling) were entertaining cameos in this 5-for wicket haul. Other notables were Owen, who seemed delighted to at last have a Captain stupid enough to realise he was a bowling paragon; Bish Patel who still has the mojo and Dunc Cambray with his looks and action that could be mistaken for Canterbury's Harry Harris.

All in all I'd like to thank the team for their support and for putting aside their Saturdays to play in what were sometimes winter conditions. It was rare to have to search for extra players; in fact finding places in other sides or a Saturday off for twelfth men was a more regular chore: an infinitely better situation. I felt that even if we didn't always produce the best cricket that we were a tight knit team that enjoyed attempting to do so.

THE 2C LIVING LEGENDS (AFASF)

Will Sadler

The 2003/04 promised so much for the Living Legends. Until we got onto the cricket pitch! Or tried to at least!

A combination of bad weather and the inability to put our strongest side often enough resulted in the Living Legends having their lowest finish in a number of seasons. Third.

Unfortunately, the weather was not the only frustration that the team faced. The wonderful people at Cricket Wellington were good enough to ensure that the Legends played on some of Wellington's special pitches. At times it felt like the low, slow artificial pitches at lan Galloway were a second home.

Despite all the negatives, there were a number of good individual and team performances during the season and the signs are there that the team will be competitive in the upcoming season. Performances of particular note included:

- Beating the grade winning Onslow side in the 1-day game and bowling them out for 49 in the first innings of the 2-day game on the back of Johnnie Mac's 7 for 16. If only the second day had not been rained off.
- Bump's fantastic all round performance in the 2-day victory over University. A hard hit half century was followed up with a 6 wicket bag.
- The Doctor's consistent all round performances. His innings' of 93 against University and 89 against Tawa were the highest individual scores of the season. He was also consistently too quick for both the opposition batsmen and the slip cordon.

THE 4AA'S Glen Neal

6th placing indicates a form-slumping 2003/04 season for the 4AA's but I am delighted that to report that the season was, rather, one of missed opportunities than mere mediocrity.

Several narrow losses were endured including three by 10 runs or an over or less, another was lost by the fickle finger of a quirky, new, rain-affected match calculation. If the outcome of those four games were reversed then we would have finished (again) among the medals.

Dr Paul French topped the batting aggregates by compiling a substantial haul of 565 runs. Toward the end of the season the good Dr. managed to either carry his bat or bat 40 overs for four games in succession – or nearly 150 overs – legendary effort. Other key contributors were Roger Kinsella (456 from just 8 digs) and Skip (357 from 11).

Blair ("Shunter") Cloutman claimed the most wickets with by grabbing the splendid tally of 25 at 4.3 per over. Shunts bowled particularly well after Xmas and cemented himself as a regular fixture at the bowling crease. Newcomer Vivian McPhail chipped in with a handy haul of 18 wickets whilst the evergreen Rob "Wookie" Wilkinson snared 14.

Shunts also held onto the much sought after "Top Bloke Trophy" award for his many feats of blokeness. The competition for the trophy all but ceased when Shunts turned out for cricket on the Sunday after 2 big days at the sevens. This was a particularly noteworthy achievement given that his first born son arrived on the Thursday prior.

Rob McIvor took out the most improved award for some excellent post Xmas efforts at the popping crease.

The side is pretty well balanced overall but sometimes lacks the ability to get runs on the board, take wickets and hold onto its catches. Apart from those three aspects the rest of the game is pretty solid. There was a marked improvement in the field this season but more application from the top order and a tighter line from the opening bowlers will be two areas for improvement in 2004/05.

Other season individual highlights included:

- The remarkable bowling figures of 2.4 − 1 − 2 − 6 by Vivian McPhail who was playing in his first ever game of outdoor cricket;
- Dual centuries to Roger Kinsella (150* v Thorndon (Round 13) and 147* v Easts):
- A Paul French knock of 116* also v Thorndon also in Rd 13;
- Skip's 105 v Thorndon in Round 4 (notable for being compiled in just 17 overs).

After 2 years at the helm (and accepting full responsibility for 6th) I will be retiring the captaincy to Gavin Miller. Gavin joined the team in 99/00 and I am sure he will lead the team well. I will continue to play and have put my name forward for higher honours (committee) so I hope to maintain a contribution in some way or another.

Thanks to Dilip, Sandy, Mal and the rest of the committee for another top notch year. Congrats to the 4ABs for pipping us on the ladder – a rare feat that I trust won't be repeated this season.

Roll on summer.

THE AXEMEN - COLLEGIANS 4A'B'

Ryan Standish

For the first time in three seasons the Axemen started with some positive form winning all bar two of the games before Xmas. The previous two seasons had seen us dogged with poor starts followed by some great end of season form when it was ultimately too late. Unfortunately the great opening season form did not materialise into a better final spot for the season. Our second half of the season emulated the first half of the previous two years and we ended up in the same place, middle of the table!

The line-up for the season was rather unsettled and key players for the team ended up leaving before the end of the season leaving us with holes we were just unable to fill. More importantly the loss of some key personalities from the previous year meant our form at the clubbies was average, in fact less than average. Many apologies to the club for this.

At the end of the day the most notable performances with the bat for the season came from Guy (Pistol) Williams who scored 531 runs at an average of 88.5 including 3 centuries (not a bad season given it finished in February). Sam (Big Bird) Heather managed 30 wickets for the season at an average of 14.

Highs:

- Playing Karori
- Graeme's gloriously enthusiastic fielding
- Guy's 118* against Thorndon
- Bowser's ten sixes
- Sam's 4-5 (sorry I forget exactly) four wicket bags for the season
- Ian Galloway being stripped of playing status after the council served up some more motocross tracks
- Guy pulling off a Mohammed Ali by predicting a century one week out and then scoring 100 exactly the following Saturday
- Toppling the 4A'A team in a hard fought contest on one of the lan Galloway motocross tracks

Lows:

- Graeme's 21 season runs at an average of 4.2 (he was a batsman)
- Graeme's bowling economy rate of 22.5 an over (like I said he was a batsman)
- Bert's 48 Wides and 13 No Balls
- My dropped C & B chance that saw Thorndon's opener score a century against us
- The death of the flourish
- Guy's tantrum when Mat Reed almost ran him out (on the way to his Mohammed Ali hundred)

I'd like to finish by thanking all the people at the club for all their support. Also thanks to Bert and Brad for all their support and help organising. Cheers to the team, the season was heaps of fun and I'm looking forward to the next one.

INDIVIDUAL HONOURS

NEW ZEALAND

James Franklin - NZ and NZ "A"

CRICKET WELLINGTON Representative Honours 2003/04

James Franklin
Amanda Cooper
Erin McDonald
Faele O'Connor
Amy Burgess
Sophie Jackson
Melissa Burgess
Hannah Bedford – U16

Individual Honours

Erin McDonald – Wellington Women's Outstanding Representative Bowler

D Scott (Monty) McHardy – Arthur Dick Cup – most runs in Intercity Senior Men's Cricket (Nishant Goyat was runner up)

Sam Kirk - Ron Murray Cup - most wickets in Intercity Senior Men's Cricket

Amanda Cooper – Majorie Sweetman Memorial Trophy – most wickets in Senior Women's Cricket

CLUB AWARDS 2003/04

Martin Luckie Trophy - Best Club Member Dan Kershaw

James Trophy: Senior Cricketer of the Year Amanda Cooper

Phoenix Cup: Best and Fairest Senior Player Sam Kirk

R C Pope Mug - Best Senior Player
D Scott (Monty) McHardy

Don Churchill Cup - Best Senior Reserve Player
Julian Brown

John Rose Memorial Cup - Hardest Working Player
Dan Fraser

Norm Bibby Memorial Cup - Most Promising Young Player Hannah Bedford

Committee Cup: Best Committee Person
Will Sadler

Grey Cup: Most Two Day Runs D Scott (Monty) McHardy - 614

Grey Cup: Most Two Day wickets Sam Kirk – 51

Grey Cup Most One Day runsDr Paul French (4AA) - 565

Grey Cup: Most One Day wickets Sam Heather (4AB) - 30

Ina Lamason Cup: Most Runs (Women) Amanda Cooper - 308

Ina Lamason Cup: Most Wickets (Women)
Amanda Cooper – 26

Penny Kinsella Cup - Best Women's Contribution Wainui Bedford

HONOURS BOARDBPERFORMANCES 2003/04 SEASON

D Scott McHardy	Senior Men	614 runs, 100
Nishant Goyat	Senior Men	549 runs, 130 and 108
Justin Lampard	Senior Men/Sen3	154, 102*
Nick Whittington	Senior Men	111
Sam Kirk	Senior Men	51 wickets, 7 for 22 & 7
		for 52 (including hatrick)
Julian Brown	Senior 3	8 for 25
Garrick Sutherland	Senior 3	7 for 25
John McCrystal	2C	7 for 16 (including hatrick)

Other Notable Performances during 2003/04

Other Notable Performances during 2003/04 (Not eligible for Honours Board but are hereby acknowledged)

Dr Paul French	4AA	565 runs, 116
Roger Kinsella	4AA	150* and 147*
Glen Neal	4AA	105
Guy Williams	4AB	118*, 101*, & 100
W Trukk	4B	105 & 101
S Yates	4B	105*

TREASURERS REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TREASURERS REPORT

Will Sadler

The surplus of \$11,817 represents another good result for the Club. Both the Senior and Junior Clubs recorded positive results, recognising surpluses of \$9,318 and \$2,499 respectively.

Senior Club

The Senior Club surplus is a paper-based profit as cash reserves actually decreased through the year.

The surplus is principally due to the strengthening of the balance sheet that resulted from the receipt of substantial grants from the New Zealand Community Trust (NZCT). The funding received from the NZCT allowed for the purchase of:

- A significant amount of playing gear that has been capitalised and will be depreciated fully over the next two seasons; and,
- A large number of cricket balls that have been included as a stock item in the balance sheet. These will be used and expensed in the next season.

The season's financial highlights included:

- The unexpected level of funding received from the NZCT. The \$28,675 that was received allowed for all business as usual expenses (playing gear, balls and ground fees) to be met as well as an upgrade of the net facilities.
- An increase in subscription revenue. This was the result of slightly higher player subscriptions and an almost 100% collection rate.
- A significant decrease in pavilion trading revenue. Bar takings were down by almost \$5,000 from the previous year as a result of poor after match attendances.
- A significant decrease in the administrative and management costs due to the inability to identify a suitable coach for the Senior Teams.
- An increase in other expenses due principally to the costs associated with the Senior Men's pre-season trip and pre-season net sessions, the upgrade of the net facilities and the purchase of new covers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. Statement of Financial Performance For the Year ended 31 May 2004

	2004 (\$)	2003 (\$)
Income		
Coaching Subsidies	0	1,778
Donations	215	400
Interest Income	1,144	1,113
Pavilion Donations	1,831	2,071
Pavilion Trading Income	8,475	13,278
Sponsorship & Grants	31,200	17,810
Subscriptions – Senior Club	11,952	8,665
Subscriptions – Junior Club	21,266	19,955
Other Income – Senior Club	902	2,430
Other Income – Junior Club	43,736	32,817
Total Income	120,721	100,317
Expenditure		
Administration & Management	765	11,588
Cricket Balls	5,847	0
Clothing	3,844	7,020
Communications & Annual Report	1,258	324
Depreciation	3,612	755
Ground Fees	9,909	8,602
Pavilion Direct Expenses	6,898	4,110
Pavilion Trading Expenses Other Expenses - Senior Club	4,695 9,573	6,966 3,375
Other Expenses - Junior Club	62,503	48,313
•	108,904	91,053
Total Expenditure	100,004	01,000
Operating Surplus (Loss)	11,817	0.264
Operating Surplus (Loss)	11,017	9,264
Add Accumulated Funds Brought Forward	17,790	8,525
	20.607	47.700
Accumulated Funds Carried Forward	29,607	17,790

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. Statement of Financial Position As at 31 May 2004

	2004 (\$)	2003 (\$)
Reserves		
Accumulated Funds - Senior Club Accumulated Funds - Junior Club Sponsorship Fund AD Grey Memorial Fund	16,257 13,350 34,711 55,065 119,383	6,939 10,851 34,711 56,024 108,525
Represented By		
Fixed Assets (Note 2)	10,420	6,589
Term Deposits with NBNZ (Note 3)	76,784	77,845
Current Assets		
Bank Income in Arrears Prepayments GST Refund Gear for Sale Stocks Cricket Ball Stocks Bar Stocks	23,248 0 460 1,941 2,550 6,222 120 34,541	23,485 889 1,470 0 1,560 2,752 90 30,246
Total Assets	121,745	114,680
Current Liabilities		
Sundry Creditors Income Received in Advance	2,362 0	2,270 3,885
	2,362	6,155
Net Assets Represented By Reserves	119,383	108,525

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. Sponsorship Fund For the Year ended 31 May 2004

	2004 (\$)	2003 (\$)
Income Bull & Bear Donations	0	3,000
Expenditure		
Player Payments Repairs to Nets & Clubrooms		2,070 1,700 3,770
Net Income For The Year	0	(770)
Add Opening Balance	34,711	35,481
Balance As At 31 May	34,711	34,711

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. A D Grey Memorial Fund For the Year ended 31 May 2004

	2004 (\$)	2003 (\$)
Income Interest	3,041	2,868
Expenditure Scholarships	4,000	4,000
Net Income For The Year	(959)	(1,132)
Add Opening Balance	56,024	57,156
Balance As At 31 May	55,065	56,024

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc. Notes to the Financial Statements For the Year ended 31 May 2004

1. Statement of Accounting Policies

A General Accounting Policies

The Club was registered as Wellington Collegians Cricket Club (Incorporated) with the Registrar of Incorporated Societies in December 1980. Financial Statements, which have been adopted by members at an Annual General Meeting and subject to audit, are required to be placed on public file with the Registrar on an annual basis.

- (i) These financial statements have been prepared with application of generally accepted accounting practices as defined in the Financial Reporting Act 1993.
- (ii) The principles of measurement and reporting of financial performance and position under the historical cost method has been applied.

B Specific Accounting Policies

The following specific accounting policies which significantly affect the measurement of financial performance and position have been applied:

(i) Depreciation

The principal rates of depreciation used were as follows:

Equity in Pavilion Lease Nil

Gear 50% in year 1

Pavilion Equipment 25% in years 2 and 3 10% diminishing value Pavilion Alterations 10% diminishing value

(ii) Sundry Debtors

Debtors and subscriptions in arrears are stated at estimated realisable value.

(iii) Stock

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

2. Fixed Assets

	Cost	Accumulated	2004 Net Book	2003 Net Book
		Depreciation	Value	Value
Equity in Pavilion	\$4,425	\$0	\$4,425	\$4,425
Pavilion Alterations	\$17,765	\$17,228	\$537	\$596
Pavilion Equipment	\$1,902	\$1,183	\$719	\$960
Clovers	\$2,210	\$138	\$2072	\$0
Trophies	\$51	\$0	\$51	\$51

The playing gear represented above relates only to the Senior Club. The Junior Club does not capitalise playing gear. All Junior Club playing gear is instead expensed in the year it is purchased.

3. Term Deposits

Surplus funds and the funds representing the A D Grey Memorial Fund have been placed on deposit with The National Bank of New Zealand. At balance date there were two deposits earning 5.10% and 5.20%, one rolling over at 3 month intervals and the other at 4 month intervals.

GRADE POINTS, PLACINGS & TEAM STATISTICS

Grade Points and Placings

<u>Team</u>	Points	Position in Grade	<u>Champion</u>
Senior Women	66	1st	Collegians
Senior Men (Hazlett Trophy)	113.45	2nd	Hutt
Senior 3	103.7	1st	Collegians
2A	65.81	5th	Easts (p)
2C	87.84	3rd	Onslow
4A 'B'	60	5th	Onslow
4A 'A'	54	6th	Onslow
Super 8's (S2)	33	6 th	Tawa/Uni

Senior Women

BOWLING SUMMARY NAME	OVERS	MAIDENS	RUNS	WICKETS	AVE	RUNS
						PER OVER
A Cooper	116	28	231	26	8.88	1.99
H Bedford	23	0	102	4	25.5	4.43
S Butler	72.5	15	206	22	9.36	2.84
A Burgess	78.3	6	271	10	14.26	3.46
S Jackson	31	2	103	9	11.44	3.32
E McDonald	34	10	77	8	9.63	2.26
S Morrison	80.2	16	234	14	16.71	2.92
F O'Connor	103	15	254	17	14.94	2.47
G Wilkinson	0.2	0	2	0		

BATTING SUMMARY						
DATE THE COMMITTEE	INNINGS	N/OUTS	RUNS	AVE	HIGHEST SCORE	50'S
A Cooper	13	1	308	25.67	93	3
H Bedford	13	0	97	8.08	42	
P Bedford	6	1	35	7	14	
S Butler	11	2	101	12.63	26	
A Burgess	14	2	268	22.33	75	3
Mel Burgess	5	2	24	8	14	
N Burgess	2	1	0			
T Chapman	7	3	74	18.5	38*	
S Jackson	5	1	55	13.75	29*	
E McDonald	3	1	52	26	30*	
S Morrison	11	1	149	14.9	72	1
F O'Connor	12	3	153	17	55*	1
K Standish	5	2	8	2.67	3*	
M Kapralos	2	2	1	1	1*	
F Fraser	1	0	9	9	9	
E Marriott	3	2	11	11	5	
G Wilkinson	3	1	7	3.5	4	
Penny Kinsella	1	0	1	1	1	
Tina Boonen	1	0	1	1	1	

SUMMARY

Won 9 - Lost 2 -

Drawn 2

Highest Wicket Partnerships

151 - A Burgess & H Bedford v Easts 13/12/03 109 - A Burgess & A Cooper v J'Ville 18/01/04

INDIVIDUAL HONORS

Best Batting Average A Cooper 25.67

Most Runs A Cooper 308

Highest Score A Cooper 93

Most Catches A Cooper 5

Most Run Outs O'Connor 2 each

Jackson,

Chapman
Best Bowling A Cooper 1.99

Average

Most Wickets A Cooper 26
Most Wickets In A Cooper 5
Innings S Butler

Senior Men

Batting Averages

Player	Innings	NO	Runs	Ave	HS	50s	100s	catches	stumpings
Scott McHardy	16	2	614	43.9	100	6	1	7	
Justin Lampard	6		213	35.5	154	-	1	4	
Nishant Goyat	17	1	549	34.3	130	1	2	12	1
Mark Burroughs	13		380	29.2	78	2	-	6	
Sri Rajasekar	6	1	114	22.8	45	-	-	2	
Nick Whittington	12		258	21.5	111	1	1	5	
Preston Marra	7		129	18.4	38	-	-	1	
James Franklin	5		90	18.0	40	-	-	2	
Heath Smith	1		17	17.0	17	-	-	0	
Jamie Tong	4	2	28	14.0	18	-	-	0	
Aaron McCash	3		35	11.7	34	-	-	0	
Jimmy Hill	9		95	10.6	17	-	-	6	3
Martin Seddon	12	2	99	9.9	32	-	-	6	
Jason Hart	9	2	61	8.7	24	-	-	1	
Sam Kirk	14	3	90	8.2	17	-	-	0	
Greg Haines	1		7	7.0	7	-	-	1	
Garrick	0	•	4.6		2.4			4	
Sutherland	9	2	46	6.6	24	-	-	1	
Simon Sharland	8	1	42	6.0	17	-	-	8	1
Dan Gyles	10	4	28	4.7	11	-	-	0	
Julian Brown	1		0	0.0	0	-	-	0	
Oliver Kirk	2		0	0.0	0	-	-	0	
Daniel Fraser	1		0	0.0	0	-	-	0	
Dan Kershaw	1	1	2	n/a	2	-	-	1	
Darren Hoshek	1	1	2	n/a!	2	-	-	0	

Bowling Averages

Player	O	M	R	\mathbf{W}	5-for	hat	Ave	RPO	BB
Daniel Fraser	1	1	0	1			0	0	
Heath Smith	2.2	0	5	1			5	2.3	
Darren Hoshek	10	1	51	4			12.8	5.1	
Sam Kirk Garrick	195.5	45	651	51	3	1	12.8	3.3	
Sutherland	115.2	16	380	20	1		19.0	3.3	
Scott McHardy	44.2	9	156	8			19.5	3.5	
Martin Seddon	95	11	336	17			19.8	3.5	
James Franklin	53	15	128	6			21.3	2.4	
Dan Gyles	102.2	15	412	19			21.7	4.0	
Preston Marra	35	2	159	7			22.7	4.5	
Julian Brown	11	1	59	2			29.5	5.4	
Jamie Tong	30.4	3	110	3			36.7	3.6	
Nick Whittington	43	4	185	5			37.0	4.3	
Mark Burroughs	5.5	2	20	0				3.6	
Simon Sharland	4	0	16	0				4	
Jason Hart	4	0	13	0				3.25	
Oliver Kirk	5	0	43	0				8.6	

2C Stats

Batting

Player	Innings	Not Outs	Runs	Average	HS	50's
Angry	8	4	230	57.50	69*	1
Ben	4	1	13	4.33	11	0
Boagie	2	0	15	7.50	11	0
Brooksy	1	0	33	33.00	33	0
Bump	14	2	244	20.33	53	1
Burt	1	0	2	2.00	2	0
Chris	3	0	23	7.67	13	0
Coops	1	0	0	0	0	0
David B	2	1	35	35.00	35	0
Digga	9	1	190	23.75	49	0
Doctor	8	0	309	38.63	93	3
Ernie	11	0	172	15.64	60	1
Hoggy	8	2	34	5.67	19	0
Jez	3	0	21	7.00	15	0
John	6	1	36	7.20	22	0
Matt	10	3	46	6.57	12	0
Mortgage	7	2	45	9.00	16	0
Sam	5	1	55	13.75	33	0
Scotch	1	1	50		50*	1
Stretch	11	0	243	22.09	56	1

Vague	1	0	8	8.00	8	0
Wayne	7	2	164	32.80	72*	1

Bowling

Player	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Wickets	Ave	RPO	S/R	BB
Angry	72	22	181	13	13.92	2.51	33.23	5-29
Ben	21	3	82	9	9.11	3.90	14.00	4-23
Brooksy	6	0	28	0		4.67		0-28
Bump	116	27	348	21	16.57	3.00	33.14	6-42
Burt	7	0	37	0		4.67		0-37
Chris	3	0	16	0		5.33		0-16
Coops	6	0	16	4	4.00	2.67	9.00	4-16
Digga	65	13	178	9	19.78	2.74	43.33	3-17
Doctor	67	18	162	15	10.80	2.42	26.80	5-2
Ernie	18	3	74	2	37.00	4.11	54.00	1-12
John	72	17	188	16	11.75	2.61	27.00	7-16
John C	4	0	29	1	29.00	7.25	24.00	1-29
Matt	49	3	237	6	39.50	4.84	49.00	2-23
Mortgage	17	3	68	5	13.60	4.00	20.40	4-24
Sam	40	6	129	6	21.50	3.23	40.00	2-22
Scotch	4	0	22	1	22.00	5.50	24.00	1-22
Stretch	8	0	34	2	17.00	4.25	24.00	1-14
Vague	4	0	33	0		8.25		0-33
Wayne	28	3	111	6	18.50	3.96	28.00	3-33
Zim	1	0	2	0		2.00		0-2

4A 'A'

Batting	M	I	N.O	Runs	Ave	HS	0	50's	100's
Team TOTAL	16	16		2882	180		16	11	4
French	14	14	4	565	56.5	106*	0	3	1
Kinsella	8	8	2	456	76.0	150*	0	2	2
Neal	11	11	0	357	32.5	105	0	2	1
Stevens	4	4	1	183	61.0	88	0	2	0
Miller	11	10	1	179	19.9	46	0	0	0
Attewell	13	12	1	160	14.5	34	1	0	0
Graham	14	12	1	118	10.7	55	4	1	0
McIvor	12	10	2	94	11.8	42*	1	0	0
Trevean	9	7	0	90	12.9	42	0	0	0
Hurrell	2	2	0	74	37.0	73	0	1	0
Mako	7	4	1	43	14.3	22	0	0	0
McPhail	14	10	2	41	5.1	18	2	0	0
Baker	3	3	0	38	12.7	28	1	0	0
Cloutman	14	10	1	35	3.9	11	2	0	0
Halstead	4	2	1	26	26.0	18*	0	0	0
Baird	6	2	0	16	8.0	8	0	0	0

Wilkinson	15	11	6	7	1.4	3	2	0	0
Seabrook	1	1	1	6	-	6*	0	0	0
Apperley	2	1	0	5	5.0	5	0	0	0
Hawkins	3	2	0	0	0.0	0	2	0	0
Howard	1	1	0	0	0.0	0	1	0	0

Bowling	0	M	W	R	Ave	R/O
Team TOTAL	535.4	43	122	2609	21.4	4.9
Cloutman	86	5	25	373	14.9	4.3
McPhail	36.3	2	18	258	14.3	7.1
Wilkinson	83	3	14	412	29.4	5.0
McIvor	63	2	10	298	29.8	4.7
Graham	51.4	3	10	282	28.2	5.5
Mako	34.1	2	8	130	16.3	3.8
Baird	29	1	8	144	18.0	5.0
Miller	63	10	7	284	40.6	4.5
Kinsella	24	5	7	44	6.3	1.8
Halstead	23	4	4	113	28.3	4.9
French	20	4	3	77	25.7	3.9
Hawkins	18	2	3	76	25.3	4.2
Apperley	4	0	0	25	-	6.3
Attewell	0.2	*	*	*	*	*

Wellington Collegians Cricket Club Inc

Gratefully acknowledge the support, sponsorship and donations from the following:

R C Pope **G** Carruthers L Macer **T** Barber **C C Monigatti D** Wilkinson **Bull & Bear Allied Liquor D B Breweries Ltd Kilbirnie Sports CPCNZLtd Lion Foundation NZ Community Trust Kiwi Trophies R&R Electrical Al Hobman Signs**